
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 Rathdrum 
                              City Council Agenda               

                           October 12, 2016 
                                         6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 

1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 

4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

5) CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  
A) Regular Council Minutes of September 14, 2016 
B) Special Council Minutes of September 19, 2016                                      
C) Regular and Special Bills as presented 
D) Acceptance Of 1-Acre Of Land And Easements For New Sh41 Water Production Well 
E) Accept the Spiker & Mandere, LLC water meter easement 
 

6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 

A) Idaho Chiefs of Police Association (ICOPA) re-accreditation  
B) Pancreatic Cancer Proclamation 

C) Breast Cancer Awareness Proclamation 

D) Veterans Proclamation 
 

7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  
(No formal action allowed – 3 minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on subsequent 
agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are inappropriate at this time and 
should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent appointment or after tonight’s meeting, 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

if time permitting. Repeated comments of the same or similar topic will be considered out of 
order and not allowed. 
 

8) PUBLIC HEARINGS  

9) OLD BUSINESS 
10) NEW BUSINESS  
11) STAFF REPORTS 

 Finance Reporting 

 Park and Recreation Reporting 

 Police Reporting 

 Public Works Reporting 

 City Administrator Calendaring 
 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 

A) Appointment of Mark Gorton to the Planning and Zoning Commission 
 

13) COUNCIL REPORTS 
14) OPEN MEETING TRAINING 

 
15) ADJOURN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities will be 

provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 



City of Rathdrum Council Meeting                                                                         

 

Executive Agenda Summary  
 

TO:   Mayor Vic Holmes 
   Council President Fred Meckel  
   Councilors Paula Laws, Darrell Rickard and Debbie Holmes 

FROM:  Leon Duce, City Administrator 
CC:   Department Heads 

5. Consent Calendar 

A. Regular Council Minutes of September 14, 2016– For your review 
B. Budget Hearing Minutes of September 19, 2016– For your review 
C. Regular and Special Bills as presented– For your review 
D. Accept Highway 41 well property Agreement – This item will 

accept the donation so that we can continue forward with drilling 
the new water production well. 

E. Accept the Spiker & Mandere, LLC water meter easement – This 
agreement will allow the City an easement off of Ohio for the 
purpose of vehicular and pedestrian acces to inspect and 
maintain water service meters. 

 
6. Ceremonies & Reports 

A. Idaho Chiefs of Police Association re-accreditation – An inspection 
was done on the Rathdrum PD and they have been re-accredited.  
The PD was in compliance with all accreditation standards. 

B. Pancreatic Cancer Proclamation – This proclamation will name 
November 17 as World Pancreatic Cancer Day 

C. Breast Cancer Awareness Proclamation – This proclamation will 
name the month of October as Breast Cancer Awareness Month 

September 14, 2016 



D. Veterans Proclamation – This proclamation will name the month 
of November as a month of Support and Recognition of our 
Veterans. 

7. Visitors Comments 

8. Public Hearings 

9. Old Business 

10. New Business 

11. Staff Reports 

A. Finance Reporting – See report in Packet 
B. Park and Recreation Reporting – See report in Packet 
C. Police Reporting – See report in Packet 
D. Public Works Reporting – See report in Packet 
E. City Administrator Calendaring – See Calendar in Packet 

12. Mayor’s Report/Appointments 

A. Appointment of Mark Gorton to the Planning and Zoning 
Commission – See application in Packet 

13. Council Reports 

14. Open Meeting Training 

 I will provide a brief training on the Open Meeting Law. 

15. Adjourn 



     

CALENDAR 
    October – 2016   

  

  

Oct 12    6:00 pm  Council Meeting 

Oct 13  10:30 am   Senior Center Meeting 

Oct 13   1:30 pm  KMPO  

         Oct 14     8:00 am  Council Payday 

Oct 19                 6:00 pm  Planning and Zoning 

Oct 20  12:00 pm  Chamber Luncheon 

Oct 25              8:00 am  KCATT 

Oct 25     6:00 pm  Park & Recreation  

Oct 26                  5:00 pm  Cemetery Commission  

Oct 29                  4:00 pm         Trunk or Treat Event 

Nov 01                  7:00 am Jobs Plus 

Nov 02        7:00 pm Historical Society – Old Jail 

Nov 09                  6:00 pm Council Meeting  

 

October is the fallen leaf, but it is also a wider horizon more 
clearly seen. It is the distant hills once more in sight, and the 

enduring constellations above them once again.  

Hal Borland 
 



 

 Page 1  
  

    Rathdrum 
                                          City Council Minutes       

                        September 14, 2016 
                                  6:00 p.m. 
   
 
 
Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:02 pm 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT:                         Councilor Meckel, Councilor Rickard, Councilor Holmes and Mayor 

Holmes. 
      ABSENT: Councilor Laws  
      STAFF: City Administrator Duce, City Engineer/Public Works Director 

Jump, City Clerk Halligan, Park & Rec Director Singer, Interim 
Police Chief McLean and City Attorney Cafferty. 

 
4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

Mayor Holmes stated that we will be removing 5G from the Consent Calendar because it is 
not ready at this time. 

 
5) CONSENT CALENDAR APPROVAL  

A) Regular Council Minutes of August 10, 2016 
B) Budget Hearing Minutes of August 17, 2016 



 

 Page 2  
  

C) Regular Council Minutes of September 7, 2016                                       
D) Regular and Special Bills as presented 
E) Reject Coverage under the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act 
F) Award Bid to BCR Land Services for Barrett Rd Right-of Way Clearing 
G) Accept Highway 41 well property Project 
H) Accept Agreement for Centerline Striping LLC 

 
          City Administrator Duce gave a brief overview of the Consent Calendar. 
 
        Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to accept the consent calendar with A thru F and H 

excluding letter G.  Motion seconded by Councilor Holmes. 
  
         AYES:               Councilor Meckel    
                                  Councilor Holmes 
                                  Councilor Rickard 
         NAYES:            None 
         ABSENT:         Councilor Laws  
 
         Passed by all  

             
6) CEREMONIES AND REPORTS 
 

Mayor Holmes stated that he would like to say that we have a dignitary in the audience.   
Mayor Steve Roberge of Dalton Garden is in the audience tonight, he will also be a 
presenter in the visitor’s comments.  We also have our newly retired Mark Worthen is also 
in the audience. 
 

7) VISITORS COMMENTS – An opportunity to address concerns not on the agenda  
(No formal action allowed – 3 minute time limit per issue) issues may be placed on 
subsequent agenda. Comments regarding performance by city employees are 
inappropriate at this time and should be directed to the Mayor, either by subsequent 
appointment or after tonight’s meeting, if time permitting. Repeated comments of the 
same or similar topic will be considered out of order and not allowed. 
 
Steve Roberge 
6488 N 4th St 
Dalton Gardens, Id 
 
I am also the district manager of Waste Management of Idaho.  We will offer offering 
residential trash and recycling services to your Residents starting October 10, which is our 
target date. 
 
We will be sending out flyers to all the residents in town. 



 

 Page 3  
  

 
 
 

8) PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A) Proposed Increase to Sewer Fees  

  
City Administration Duce gave the presentation on the proposed increase to Sewer 
Fees. 

 
 Increases consist of: 

• Post Falls’ portion + $2.67 
• Rathdrum’s portion + $0.68 
• Total sewer increase + $3.35 
• New base rate is $54.85 
• New overage rate is $9.14 per thousand 
• New Cap fee 

• Post Falls’ portion - $4,418.23 (3.19% increase) 
• Rathdrum’s portion - $3891.00 (0% increase) 
• Total $8,309.23 

 
Mayor Holmes opened the public hearing. 

 
Opposing: 
 

None 
 
Neutral: 
 
None 
 
In Support: 
 
None 
 
Mayor Holmes closed the public hearing. 
 

 Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to adopt the sewer resolution fee number 276 as 
presented.  Motion seconded by Councilor Rickard. 
  
AYES:               Councilor Meckel   
                         Councilor Rickard  
                    Councilor Holmes 



 

 Page 4  
  

   NAYES:  None 
ABSENT:          Councilor Laws   
 
Passed by all 

 
9) OLD BUSINESS 
10) NEW BUSINESS  

A)  Adoption of Sewer Fee Resolution 
 

B) Adoption of Avista Zoning Ordinance 
 

Councilor Holmes MOTION that the Avista Rezone Ordinance be placed on its  
first reading by title only, under suspension of the rules and to waiver its second and 
third readings. Motion seconded by Councilor Rickard. 
 
AYES:               Councilor Holmes 

                Councilor Rickard  
                  Councilor Meckel   

NAYES:             None 
     ABSENT:          Councilor Laws 

 
     Passed by all  

 
Mayor then reads Ordinance by title only. 
 
Councilor Holmes MOTION to adopt the Avista Rezone Ordinance and to 
publish by summary only & incorporate the title of the Ordinance into the body  
of the summary. Motion seconded by Councilor Meckel. 

 
            AYES:               Councilor Holmes 
                                     Councilor Meckel   
                                     Councilor Rickard  
            NAYES:            None 
            ABSENT:         Councilor Laws  
  
           Passed by all  
 

11) STAFF REPORTS 
• Finance Reporting 
• Park and Recreation Reporting 
• Police Reporting 
• Public Works Reporting 



 

 Page 5  
  

• City Administrator Calendaring 
• Reader Board is up and running.  We are working on policy right now. 
• NIC Ribbon Cutting is Wednesday September 28th at 4:00 pm.  We would like to 

see as many of you and staff there. 
 
12) MAYOR’S REPORT/APPOINTMENTS 

A) Appointment of Sherry Tevis to the Cemetery Board 
 
            Councilor Holmes made a MOTION to approve the Mayor’s appointment of Sherry 

Tevis to the Cemetery Board. Motion Meckel seconded by Councilor Meckel. 
  
             AYES:               Councilor Meckel   
                           Councilor Holmes 
                           Councilor Richard  

 NAYES:            None 
             ABSENT:          Councilor Laws   
 
             Passed by all 

 
13) COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
14) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting adjourned at 7:01 pm. 
 

 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                         Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities 
will be provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting.  

 



 

 
Page 1 

 
  

 Rathdrum 
                       Special City Council Minutes               

                    September 19, 2016 
                                         6:00 p.m. 
   
 

 

Location:  City Council Chamber 
  8047 W. Main Street     
  Rathdrum, ID  83858 
  (208) 687-0261 
 
 
 

WELCOME-PLEASE TURN OFF CELL PHONES- Thank You. 
 

 
1) CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:00 pm 
 

2) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
3) ROLL CALL 

  
PRESENT:                           Councilor Meckel, Councilor Laws, Councilor Rickard, Councilor 

Holmes and Mayor Holmes. 
      ABSENT: None 
      STAFF: City Administrator Duce, City Engineer/Public Works Director 

Jump, City Clerk Halligan. 
 

4) AMENDMENTS TO THE AGENDA 
 

5) CONSIDER STATE-LOCAL AGREEMENT FOR INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS TO MEYER 
ROAD & BOEKEL ROAD 

 
City Engineer/Public Works Director Jump gave a brief presentation. 
 
Councilor Holmes made a MOTION to accept the agreement for Federal Aid Highway 
Project A103 (864) and authorize the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute the agreement 
on behalf of the City. Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

  
                         AYES: Councilor Holmes  
 Councilor Laws  
 Councilor Meckel   

                                             Councilor Rickard 
  NAYES:                             None 

                         ABSENT:                           None   
 
                        Passed by all 

 
6) CONSIDER FUNDING FOR INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS TO MEYER ROAD & BOEKEL 

ROAD 
 

Councilor Meckel made a MOTION to approve funding for the intersection improvements 
to Meyer Road and Boekel Road and authorize the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute 
the agreement on behalf of the City. Motion seconded by Councilor Laws. 

  
                         AYES: Councilor Meckel   
 Councilor Laws  
 Councilor Rickard 

                                             Councilor Holmes 
  NAYES:                             None 

                         ABSENT:                           None   
 
                        Passed by all 

 
7) ADJOURN 

 
Meeting adjourned at 6:15 pm 
 

_____________________________________ 
                                                                         Vic Holmes, Mayor 

 
Attest: 
 
________________________________________ 
Sherri L Halligan, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 

Rathdrum City Hall is an ADA accessible building.  Assistance for persons with disabilities will be 
provided upon 24-hours’ notice prior to the meeting. 





















September CD Journal

Date Ref No. Payee or Description GL No. Account Title Amount
9/2/2016 13448 Stratton Land Services- Water Account Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 608.00

9/6/2016 13449 Shawna Andres- Soccer Refund 10-370-210 RECREATION FEES 23.00

9/6/2016 13450 Shawna Andres- Soccer Refund 10-370-210 RECREATION FEES 23.00

9/6/2016 13451 Michelle Simpson- Soccer Refund 10-370-210 RECREATION FEES 23.00

9/6/2016 13452 Larry & Christina Lovell- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 39.94

9/6/2016 13453 Paula & Fleck Danley- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 8.70

9/6/2016 13454 James Scriba- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 115.43

9/6/2016 13455 Michael & Susan Riddle- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 37.92

9/6/2016 13456 Donna Halpin- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 26.20

9/6/2016 13457 David Foutz- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 84.25

9/6/2016 13458 Kenneth Hoyer- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 10.94

9/6/2016 13459 Amanda & Jeremy Nicholson- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 116.49

9/7/2016 13460 Dianne Hazuha- Park Cleanup Refund 10-370-700 PARK USER FEES 25.00

9/7/2016 13461 Ron Prim- Park Cleanup Refund 10-370-700 PARK USER FEES 25.00

9/7/2016 13462 Dawn Rumelchart- Park Cleanup Refund 10-370-700 PARK USER FEES 75.00

9/7/2016 13463 Leon Duce- Moving Expenses 10-414-110 SALARIES/CITY ADMINISTRATOR 638.26

9/7/2016 13464 ASCE Continuting Education- Seminar K. Jump 10-425-490 SCHOOLING 1,175.00

9/9/2016 13465 Don Arestad- Notary & Mailing Fees 63-400-600 NEW WELL DEVELOPMENT 20.00

9/9/2016 13466 Vicki Bird- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 73.50

9/9/2016 13467 Strong Utility Inc.- Pipe Push for Reader Board 40-400-650 ELECTRONIC READER BOARD 300.00

9/9/2016 13468 Sherri Halligan- Mileage HR Meetings 10-415-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 4.50

Sherri Halligan- Mileage HR Meetings 60-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 4.50

Sherri Halligan- Mileage HR Meetings 61-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 4.50

9/9/2016 13469 Tracey Throw- Bouncy House Purchase for Park & Rec 10-440-750 RECREATION SUPPLIES 75.00

9/12/2016 13470 AFLAC- September Premium 10-218200 AFLAC Payable 1,669.22

9/14/2016 13471 Verizon Wireless- Leon's Ipad 10-415-510 TELEPHONE & COMMUNICATIONS 13.34

Verizon Wireless- Leon's Ipad 60-434-510 TELEPHONE & COMMUNICATIONS 13.34

Verizon Wireless- Leon's Ipad 61-434-510 TELEPHONE & COMMUNICATIONS 13.33

9/15/2016 13472 Blue Line Training- OES Class- G. Hook 10-421-490 SCHOOLING 299.00

9/15/2016 13473 Heather Fessler- Per Diem ICCTFOA 10-415-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.67

Heather Fessler- Per Diem ICCTFOA 60-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.67

Heather Fessler- Per Diem ICCTFOA 61-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.66

9/15/2016 13474 Leon Duce- Per Diem ICCTFOA 10-414-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 92.00

9/15/2016 13475 Melissa Taylor- Per Diem ICCTFOA 10-415-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.67

Melissa Taylor- Per Diem ICCTFOA 60-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.67

Melissa Taylor- Per Diem ICCTFOA 61-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.66

9/15/2016 13476 Sherri Halligan- Per Diem ICCTFOA 10-415-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.67

Sherri Halligan- Per Diem ICCTFOA 60-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.67

Sherri Halligan- Per Diem ICCTFOA 61-434-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 30.66

9/19/2016 13477 Best Western Plus- Lodging for G. Hook 10-421-470 TRAVEL- MEALS & LODGING 334.80

9/19/2016 13478 Tomi McLean- Per Diem ICOPA 10-421-470 TRAVEL- MEALS & LODGING 102.00

9/19/2016 13479 VISA- Credit Card Payment- T.McLean 10-421-470 TRAVEL- MEALS & LODGING 26.04

VISA- Credit Card Payment- T.McLean 10-421-325 UNIFORMS 357.14

9/19/2016 13480 Best Buy- 2 Police Computers 10-421-765 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE < 1,000 2,099.98

9/19/2016 13481 ITD- Grant Match- Meyer & Boekel Rd. 13-400-100 CIRCULATION EXPENSE 10,000.00

9/21/2016 13482 Intermountain Design Inc.- Chairs 10-415-755 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE < 1,000 646.67

Intermountain Design Inc.- Chairs 60-434-755 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE <1,000 646.67

Intermountain Design Inc.- Chairs 61-434-755 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE <1,000 646.66

9/21/2016 13483 Center for Education & Employment Law 10-421-480 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 254.95

9/27/2016 13484 Blue Sky Broadcasting- Special Events 10-440-710 SPECIAL EVENTS 300.00

1



September CD Journal

Date Ref No. Payee or Description GL No. Account Title Amount
9/27/2016 13485 Symbolants, LLC- Badge 324AZ State Seal 10-421-325 UNIFORMS 120.00

9/27/2016 13486 State of Idaho- Notaries & Trademarks 10-421-480 DUES/SUBSCRIPTIONS/MEMBERSHIPS 30.00

9/27/2016 13487 Trigger Control Training- Glock Magazines 10-421-326 FIREARMS SUPPLIES 383.70

9/27/2016 13488 Regence Blue Shield- October Premium 10-217500 HEALTH INSURANCE PAYABLE 30,744.13

9/27/2016 13489 ACI Northwest- Park Cleanup Refund 10-370-700 PARK USER FEES 75.00

9/27/2016 13490 City of Rathdrum- Dog Fine applied to wrong account- S. Mack10-342-300 DOG FINES 50.00

9/28/2016 13491 Fleck & Paula Danley- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 71.05

9/28/2016 13492 COSTCO- Supplies for City BBQ 10-440-710 SPECIAL EVENTS 37.97

COSTCO- Supplies for City BBQ 10-435-315 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 58.98

COSTCO- Supplies for City BBQ 10-435-470 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 142.41

COSTCO- Supplies for City BBQ 10-415-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 51.88

COSTCO- Supplies for City BBQ 60-434-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 51.88

COSTCO- Supplies for City BBQ 61-434-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 51.88

9/28/2016 13493 Jonathon & Shauna Riebli- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 60.88

9/28/2016 13494 Jessica Telecky- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 139.68

9/28/2016 13495 Jessica & Jason Harsh- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 119.69

9/28/2016 13496 Steven Schlotter Beck- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 20.32

9/28/2016 13497 Dean & Virginia Talley- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 241.05

9/28/2016 13498 Arron Horn- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 43.38

9/28/2016 13499 John Morgan- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 25.13

9/28/2016 13500 Eric & Sarah Nave- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 108.74

9/28/2016 13501 Jake Dietz- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 40.79

9/28/2016 13502 Michelle Harsler- Credit Balance Refund 01-107500 CASH CLEARING - UTILITY 11.54

9/30/2016 13503 US Postal Service- September Utility Bills 10-415-370 POSTAGE 252.46

US Postal Service- September Utility Bills 60-434-370 POSTAGE 252.46

US Postal Service- September Utility Bills 61-434-370 POSTAGE 252.45

9/30/2016 13504 Travelers- Surety Bond 10-421-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES 50.00

9/30/2016 13505 Intermountain Design Inc.- Sherman Hunter Chair 10-423-760 EQUIPMENT PURCHASE > 1,000 485.00

9/30/2016 13507 Mickael Stevens- Supplies for Trunk or Treat 10-440-710 SPECIAL EVENTS 10.60

9/30/2016 13508 Donna Cooper- Supplies for Trunk or Treat 10-440-800 NEW PROGRAMS 90.92

55,402.24

2



f:\public works\shared files\ricohscans\capital projects\new water well - 2015-16\revised arestad legals\memo sh41 well - warranty deed and easements - 10.6.16.docx 

Memo 
To:   City Council 

From:  Kevin Jump 

CC:   

Date:  October 6, 2016 

Re:  SH41 Water Production Well  

We are working with Don Arestad  for the acquisition of 1-acre of property for a new 
water well site (on west-side of SH41, across from "Welcome to Rathdrum" entry 
sign) and permanent easements for: 1.) ingress/egress to the well site; and 2.) water 
main extension to the new well site property. 

Mr. Arestad has very generously offered to donate this property to the City of 
Rathdrum.  Presently, we are awaiting receipt of a signed agreement, warranty deed 
and easements from Mr. Arestad. 

I'm herein seeking Council's permission to accept the following, upon our receipt of 
them from Mr. Arestad.  Your positive action will authorize Mayor Holmes to execute 
these documents and authorize the City Clerk to record them.  

 Gift Agreement  
 Warranty Deed 
 Ingress/Egress and Water Easement 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

P  208.687.2700 
F  208.687.1377 



ARESTAD WATER PRODUCTION WELL PROPERTY and EASEMENTS GIFT AGREEMENT - 1 

WATER PRODUCTION WELL PROPERTY, INGRESS/EGRESS EASEMENT and WATER 
MAIN EASEMENT GIFT AGREEMENT 

 
 This Agreement entered into between the city of Rathdrum, a municipal corporation, 
hereinafter CITY, 8047 W. Main St., Rathdrum, ID   83858, and Ragnar Arestad, a single man, 
P.O. Box 2646, Coeur d’Alene, ID  83816, and hereinafter referred to as ARESTAD. 
 
 WHEREAS, ARESTAD desires to convey to the CITY a parcel of property, 
ingress/egress easement and permanent easements for the use by the CITY for a municipal water 
production well, site access to the water production well and water lines, respectively.  The water 
production property to be conveyed is described as follows: 
 

WATER PRODUCTION WELL 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 51 North, Range 5 
West, Boise Meridian, Kootenai County, Idaho described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the East quarter corner of said Section 12, thence along the south 
line of said northeast quarter, North 87°59’10” West 535.16 feet; thence North 
02°00’50” East 50.00 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING: 
 
Thence continuing North 02°00’50” East 175.00 feet; 
 
Thence parallel with said South line, South 87°59’10” East 249.00 feet; 
 
Thence South 02°00’50” West 175.00 feet; 
 
Thence parallel with said South line, North 87°59’10” West 249.00 feet to the 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING:  
 
Containing 43,575 square feet or 1.000 acres more or less. 

 
The ingress/egress easement to be conveyed is described as follows: 
 

INGRESS/EGRESS AND WATER EASEMENT  
(TO WATER PRODUCTION WELL) 

That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 51 North, Range 5 
West, Boise Meridian, Kootenai County, Idaho described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the East quarter corner of said Section 12, thence along the south 
line of said northeast quarter, North 87°59’10” West 50.28 feet to the westerly 
right of way of State Route 41, said point being the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING: 
 
Thence continuing North 87°59’10” West 484.87 feet; 
 
Thence North 02°00’50” East 50.00 feet’ 
 
Thence parallel with said South line, South 87°59’10” East 484.07 feet to said 
Westerly right of way; 
 



ARESTAD WATER PRODUCTION WELL PROPERTY and EASEMENTS GIFT AGREEMENT - 2 

Thence along said Westerly right of way, South 01°05’30” West 50.01 feet to the 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 24,223 square feet or 0.556 acres more or less. 

 
The permanent water easement to be conveyed is described as follows: 
 

WATER EASEMENT 
The east 30 feet of that portion of the northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 
51 North, Range 5 West of the Boise Meridian lying westerly of the right-of-way 
for Highway 41 as created in a deed recorded with Kootenai County in Book 149 
of Deeds at Page 490 on March 14, 1952, located in the City of Rathdrum, 
Kootenai County, Idaho. 
 
Except the south 40 feet therefrom. 
 
Containing 78,037 square feet, more or less.  Public water transmission mains, 
placed within said easement, shall be constructed with a minimum soil cover of 7'-
0" (84 inches).  Further, the finished ground elevation above the public water 
transmission main shall be below the existing edge of pavement elevation of State 
Highway 41. 

 
; and 
 

WHEREAS, CITY desires to accept the water production well property, ingress/egress & 
water easement, and water easement and to cooperate with ARESTAD to obtain an appraisal of 
the property being gifted to the CITY and provide the documentation to reflect the nature and 
appraised value of the gift.   
.  
 NOW THEREFORE, it is agreed as follows: 
 

1. Property Appraisal.  CITY has contracted with Morse & Company Real Estate 
Appraisers, a certified MAI appraiser, to determine the fair market value of the property being 
gifted.  The choice of the appraiser was made at the sole discretion of ARESTAD. 
 

CITY has provided ARESTAD a copy of the appraisal.  The cost of services for the 
appraisal has been borne by the CITY with no reimbursement expectation from ARESTAD. 
 

2. Use of Appraisal.  The parties agree that the purpose for the appraisal is to 
determine the fair market value of the properties being gifted, and is not for the purpose of an 
eminent domain or inverse condemnation action.  In the event that ARESTAD changes his mind 
about gifting the properties to the CITY and it becomes necessary to obtain an appraisal for 
conveyance of the properties to the CITY on any other terms, the parties agree that neither party 
will use the appraisal paid by CITY, as requested by ARESTAD pursuant to this agreement, 
unless agreed to by both parties. 
 

3. Gift of Land.  ARESTAD agrees that he will gift the Water Production Well 
property described in the recitals above to the CITY, in fee simple title free and clear of any 
encumbrances,  to the CITY.  The gift deed and gift easements will be delivered to the CITY as 
soon as possible, but no later than October 15, 2016. 
 



ARESTAD WATER PRODUCTION WELL PROPERTY and EASEMENTS GIFT AGREEMENT - 3 

ARESTAD represents that this gift is being made by him freely and that the CITY has 
not coerced him to make this gift or provided any consideration to ARESTAD for the gift, other 
than what has been set forth herein.  
 

4. Gift Acknowledgment.  CITY agrees, to the extent allowed by law, to execute the 
Internal Revenue forms presented by ARESTAD to acknowledge the receipt of the gift by the 
CITY, so long as the documents do not require the CITY to independently determine the dollar 
amount of the value of the gift or misrepresent the nature of the gift.   The parties recognize that 
the CITY does not employee city staff that have the expertise to either independently determine 
the fair market value of the property or to confirm the accuracy of the appraisal. 
 

5. Tax Ramifications.  ARESTAD acknowledges that the CITY has not made any 
representations to him as to the tax ramifications relating to this gift.  ARESTAD has consulted 
with his own attorney and tax advisers and has relied solely on their advice.  

 
Dated this ___ day of ____________, 2016. 
 

RAGNAR ARESTAD CITY OF RATHDRUM 
 
 
 
                  
ARESTAD Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
  ATTEST: 
 
  

 _______________________________ 
 Sherri Halligan, City Clerk 

 
 
  



ARESTAD WATER PRODUCTION WELL PROPERTY and EASEMENTS GIFT AGREEMENT - 4 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
    :ss 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this ___ day of ____________, 2016, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, 
personally appeared Ragnar Arestad known, or identified to me to be the person whose name is 
subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the state of Idaho 
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    :ss 
County of Kootenai  ) 
 
 On this ___ day of ____________, 2016, before me, a Notary for the state of Idaho, 
personally appeared Vic Holmes and Sherri Halligan known , or identified to me to be the Mayor 
and City Clerk, of the city of Rathdrum, Kootenai County, Idaho, executing the herein 
instrument, and acknowledged to me that such city of Rathdrum executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the state of Idaho 
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 
 
          

 
 

 
 

   



Warranty Deed - Rathdrum SH41 Water Well:  1 

 

WARRANTY DEED 
 
 RAGNAR ARESTAD, a single man, hereinafter called the Grantor, for good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby grant, bargain, sell 
and convey unto the CITY OF RATHDRUM, Kootenai County, State of Idaho, a municipal 
corporation, whose address is 8047 W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho  83858, hereinafter called 
the Grantee, the following described premises situated in Kootenai County, Idaho, to wit: 

 
Kootenai County Parcel #R-0000-012-1300: 
 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 51 North, Range 
5 West, Boise Meridian, Kootenai County, Idaho described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the East quarter corner of said Section 12, thence along the 
south line of said northeast quarter, North 87°59’10” West 535.16 feet; thence 
North 02°00’50” East 50.00 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING: 
 
Thence continuing North 02°00’50” East 175.00 feet; 
 
Thence parallel with said South line, South 87°59’10” East 249.00 feet; 
 
Thence South 02°00’50” West 175.00 feet; 
 
Thence parallel with said South line, North 87°59’10” West 249.00 feet to the 
TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING:  
 
Containing 43,575 square feet or 1.000 acres more or less. 
 
Together with and subject to easements, rights-of-way, covenants, reservations 
and restrictions of record or in view. 

TOGETHER WITH all improvements, water, ditches, ditch rights, easements, 
hereditaments and appurtenances thereto, if any. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD, the said premises, and their appurtenances unto the said 
Grantee and to the Grantee’s heirs and assigns forever.  Grantor, for himself and his heirs and 
assigns, do hereby covenant to and with the said Grantee, its successors and assigns, that (1) the 
Grantor is the owner in fee simple of said premises; (2) Grantor has the right to convey the 
premises; (3) the premises are free from all liens and encumbrances; (4)  Grantor warrants and 
will defend the quiet and peaceable possession of the premises by the Grantee, its heirs and 
assigns forever, against all lawful claims whatsoever. 



Warranty Deed - Rathdrum SH41 Water Well:  2 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto set Grantor's hand this ___ day of 
_____________________, 2016. 

 
 ________________________________________ 
 RAGNAR ARESTAD, GRANTOR 
 

 
STATE OF IDAHO ) 
    :ss 
County of Kootenai ) 
 
 On this ___ day of _______________________, 20__, before me, a Notary for the state 
of Idaho, personally appeared RAGNAR ARESTAD, a single man, known, or identified to me to 
be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that 
he executed the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
date and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
       _____________________________   
       Notary Public for the state of Idaho 
       Residing at: 
       Commission Expires: 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Grant of Easement - SH41 Water Well Page 1 
46643.0002.8316254.1 

Recording Requested By and 
When Recorded Return to: 
 
City of Rathdrum 
8047 W. Main Street 
Rathdrum, ID  83858 

____________________________________________________________________________ 
SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER’S USE ONLY 

 GRANT OF EASEMENT 
 
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that RAGNAR ARESTAD, Grantor, as a gift and 
without economic consideration, does hereby grant and convey unto the CITY OF 
RATHDRUM, a municipal corporation, Kootenai County, state of Idaho, whose address is 8047 
W. Main Street, Rathdrum, Idaho 83858 (hereinafter “Grantee”), a perpetual water utility easement 
and the right of ingress and egress to Grantee's water utility infrastructure, as set forth herein, for the 
purpose of installation and maintenance of underground water utilities, over the property described 
in Exhibit "A" and Exhibit "B", both of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by 
reference. 
 
TO HAVE AND TO HOLD such easement(s) as described above for the right to erect, construct, 
install and lay and thereafter use, operate and inspect, repair, maintain replace or remove water 
utilities, through the land described above. 
 
This easement(s) shall run with the land and be binding on the heirs, representatives, successors, 
and assigns of Grantor with respect to the Easement(s), and shall inure to the benefit of the 
Grantee and its successors and assigns. Should the Easement(s) cease to be used for the above 
stated purposes, the Easement(s) shall automatically extinguish. Grantor shall not construct any 
buildings or structures over the Easement(s), unless Grantor can do so without interfering with 
the stated purpose of the Easement(s).    

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Easement as of the 

Effective Date.  
     GRANTOR 
           
     By:  _________________________________________ 
      Ragnar Arestad 
STATE OF IDAHO  ) 
    :ss 
County of Kootenai  ) 
 On this ___ day of ___________, 2016, before me, a Notary Public in and for said State 
of    , personally appeared Ragnar Arestad, identified to me to be the person 
whose name are subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such executed 
the same. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and affixed my official seal the 
date and year in this certificate first above written. 
       _____________________________ 
       Notary Public for the State of Idaho 
       Residing at:___________________ 
       Commission Expires:___________ 



Grant of Easement - SH41 Water Well Page 2 
46643.0002.8316254.1 

 
Acceptance of Grant of Easement: 
City of Rathdrum 
 
By:  __________________________________ 

Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________________ 
 Sherri Halligan, City Clerk 



Grant of Easement - SH41 Water Well Page 3 
46643.0002.8316254.1 

Exhibit A 
 

City of Rathdrum Well Site Ingress/Egress and Water Easement 
(Ingress & Egress from State Highway 41) 

 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 51 North, Range 5 West, Boise Meridian, Kootenai 
County, Idaho described as follows: 
 
Commencing at the East quarter corner of said Section 12, thence along the south line of said northeast quarter, 
North 87°59’10” West 50.28 feet to the westerly right of way of State Route 41, said point being the TRUE POINT 
OF BEGINNING: 
 
Thence continuing North 87°59’10” West 484.87 feet; 
 
Thence North 02°00’50” East 50.00 feet’ 
 
Thence parallel with said South line, South 87°59’10” East 484.07 feet to said Westerly right of way; 
 
Thence along said Westerly right of way, South 01°05’30” West 50.01 feet to the TRUE POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 24,223 square feet or 0.556 acres more or less. 

 
  



Grant of Easement - SH41 Water Well Page 4 
46643.0002.8316254.1 

Exhibit B 
 

City of Rathdrum Water Easement 
 

 
That portion of the Northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 51 North, Range 5 West, Boise Meridian, Kootenai 
County, Idaho described as follows: 
 
The east 30 feet of that portion of the northeast quarter of Section 12, Township 51 North, Range 5 West of the 
Boise Meridian lying westerly of the right-of-way for Highway 41 as created in a deed recorded with Kootenai 
County in Book 149 of Deeds at Page 490 on March 14, 1952, located in the City of Rathdrum, Kootenai County, 
Idaho. 
 
Except the south 40 feet therefrom. 
 
Containing 78,037 square feet, more or less. 

 

















PROCLAMATION 

 
Declaring November 17th as “World Pancreatic Cancer Day” in the City 

of Rathdrum 

Whereas, in 2016, an estimated 53,070 people in the United States will be 
diagnosed with pancreatic cancer, one of the deadliest cancers, and 
41,780 will die from the disease;  

Whereas, pancreatic cancer surpassed breast cancer this year to become 
the third leading cause of cancer death in the United States, and it is 
projected to become the second leading cause by 2020; 

Whereas, pancreatic cancer is the only major cancer with a five-year 
relative survival rate in the signal digits at just eight percent; 

Whereas, when symptoms of pancreatic cancer present themselves, it is 
generally in later stages, and 71 percent of pancreatic cancer patients 
die within the first year of their diagnosis; 

Whereas, approximately 210 deaths will occur in Idaho in 2016; 

Whereas, pancreatic cancer is the seventh most common cause of cancer-
related death in men and women across the world; 

Whereas, there will be an estimated 418,451 new pancreatic cancer cases 
diagnosed worldwide in 2020; 

Whereas, the good health and well-being of the residents of Rathdrum 
are enhanced as a direct result of increased awareness about pancreatic 
cancer and research into early detection, causes and effective treatment 

Now, Therefore I, Vic Holmes, Mayor of Rathdrum, Idaho, do hereby 
proclaim November 17, 2016 as; 

World Pancreatic Cancer Day  
 

Mayor, Rathdrum, Idaho November 2016 

 



Page: 1 
46643.0001.8411592.1 

 

PROCLAMATION 

 
Declaring November 17th as “World Pancreatic Cancer Day” in the City 

of Rathdrum 

WHEREAS, in 2016, an estimated 53,070 people in the United States 
will be diagnosed with pancreatic cancer, one of the deadliest cancers, and 
41,780 will die from the disease;  

WHEREAS, pancreatic cancer surpassed breast cancer this year to 
become the third leading cause of cancer death in the United States, and 
it is projected to become the second leading cause by 2020; 

WHEREAS, pancreatic cancer is the only major cancer with a five-
year relative survival rate in the signal digits at just eight percent; 

WHEREAS, when symptoms of pancreatic cancer present 
themselves, it is generally in later stages, and 71 percent of pancreatic 
cancer patients die within the first year of their diagnosis; 

WHEREAS, approximately 210 deaths will occur in Idaho in 2016; 

WHEREAS, pancreatic cancer is the seventh most common cause of 
cancer-related death in men and women across the world; 

WHEREAS, there will be an estimated 418,451 new pancreatic 
cancer cases diagnosed worldwide in 2020; 

WHEREAS, the good health and well-being of the residents of 
Rathdrum are enhanced as a direct result of increased awareness about 
pancreatic cancer and research into early detection, causes and effective 
treatment 

  



Page: 2 
46643.0001.8411592.1 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Vic Holmes, Mayor of Rathdrum, Idaho, do 
hereby proclaim November 17, 2016 as: 

   World Pancreatic Cancer Day  
DATED this ___ day of October, 2016. 
 

 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 

 
 

 



Page:  1 
 

 

PROCLAMATION 

 
WHEREAS, October 2016 marks more than 26 years that National 

Breast Cancer Awareness Month has educated men and women about 
early breast cancer detection; and 
 

WHEREAS, National Breast Cancer Awareness Month is dedicated 
to increasing public knowledge about the importance of early detection of 
breast cancer by collaborating with several national public service 
organizations, professional associations, and government agencies who 
work together to ensure that the National Breast Cancer Awareness 
Month message is heard by thousands of men and women and their 
families; and 
 

WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society estimates in the United 
States more than 231,000 new cases of invasive breast cancer will be 
diagnosed in women this year; and 
 

WHEREAS, the American Cancer Society estimates in the United 
States more than 2,000 new cases of invasive breast cancer will be 
diagnosed in men this year; and 
 

WHEREAS, through research and advocacy, significant advances 
have been made in the fight against breast cancer, including significant 
decreases in mortality; and 
 

WHEREAS, the 2.9 million breast cancer survivors living in the 
United States today are a testament to courage, as well as to the 
importance of promoting awareness about breast cancer, providing 
information, funding research, following recommended screening 
guidelines and offering treatment to those who are affected. 
 
 

 
 



Page:  2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Vic Holmes, Mayor of the City of Rathdrum, 
Idaho, do hereby recognize the month of October 2016 as Breast Cancer 
Awareness Month and ask all citizens to join in this worthwhile cause, to 
celebrate successes and memorialize lost battles. 

 
DATED this ___ day of October, 2016. 
 

 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 



 

Page:  1 
 

 
PROCLAMATION 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the citizens of the City of Rathdrum and the United 
States of America live in freedom because of the contributions and 
personal sacrifices made by those who have served and by those now 
serving in the Armed Forces; and 

 WHEREAS, our nation has fought and continues to fight battles 
around the world for the ideals of liberty and justice.  The words of the 
first Veterans Day proclamation signed by President Eisenhower still ring 
true:  “Let us solemnly remember the sacrifices of all those who fought so 
valiantly, on the seas, in the air, and on foreign shores, to preserve our 
heritage and freedom, and let us reconsecrate ourselves to the task of 
promoting an enduring peace so that their efforts shall not have been in 
vain”; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Rathdrum has always provided its best and 
brightest sons and daughters to serve bravely in America’s Armed Forces.  
We remember with somber and grateful hearts those men and women who 
have served in the military with distinction and valor as sailors, soldiers, 
airmen, and Marines, and offer our sincere prayers for those who 
continue to defend the principles on which our nation was founded; and 

 WHEREAS, we will endeavor to always honor the contributions and 
sacrifices of those who have, over the centuries, served in the military and 
the tens of thousands presently serving, both at home and abroad; and 

 WHEREAS, the City of Rathdrum is home to veterans and our 
nation’s military families.  We are proud to recognize our country’s 
veterans and extend the appreciation of our citizens to those who wear 
the uniform of the United States Armed Forces and serve on the front 
lines, preserving freedom and liberty; 

  



 

Page:  2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Vic Holmes, Mayor of the City of Rathdrum, 
do hereby proclaim the month of November, 2016, as a month of Support 
and Recognition to recognize the service and sacrifice of our brave men 
and women in uniform and encourage all citizens of the City of Rathdrum 
to observe and appreciate these sacrifices and contributions of our 
veterans who fought for peace and defended democracy in our land and 
abroad. 
 

DATED this ___ day of October, 2016. 
 

 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Vic Holmes, Mayor 
 
 
 

 



1 
 

STAFF REPORT 
September 2016 

Finance & Administration 
 

CURRENT ACTIVITY 
 

1. New Utility Accounts – 39 – Closed  - 35 
2. Cemetery –  Burials - 4 
3. Normal Monthly Activity (Utility Bills/Customer 

Service/Payables/Payroll/General Ledger) 
4. Monthly SWT Reporting 
5. Monthly Financial Statements 
6. Monthly Bank Reconciliation 
7. Department Head Credit Card Reconciliation 
8. Website & Facebook updates 
9. Finalization of FY16-17 Budget to Attorney General’s Office 
10. Attended the ICCTFOA Conference 
11. Reconcile Cities Fixed Assets 
12. Council meeting preparation 
13. Begin FY15-16 Audit Process 
14. Reconciliation of ICRMP Claims 
15. Reconciliation of State Insurance Fund Claims 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 



RATHDRUM PARKS, RECREATION, & CEMETERY DEPARTMENT 
City Council  

Monthly Staff Report, October 12, 2016 
 
 

Recreation Programs        

 We are in the middle of fall sports and to this point things have gone very well.  We are 
currently taking registrations for Kindergarten-4th Grade basketball.  Our Mini Slammers 
Basketball Camp will be held each Saturday from October 29 -November 19 at the Lakeland 
High School.  Once again Steins IGA will be sponsoring the Mini-Slammers program.   

 
Community Events 

 We will be having our first ever Trunk R’ Treat Festival on Saturday October 29th.  This 
event will be held on Main Street from 4 PM to 7:30 PM.  Anyone is welcome to bring a 
vehicle down and decorate it and hand out candy to the kids.   We have several vehicles 
already registered but still have room for more.  We will also be having a costume 
parade, arts and crafts for the kids and other activities.    
 

Park Activities 

 Asphalt Pathways and the irrigation system have been completed in the N.E. corner 
of Majestic Park.  All trees and shrubbery have been planted.  We have also installed 
decorative edging on the parking lot fence line.  Staff is finishing up the final grading 
and a landscape mulch will be blown in tomorrow so grass seed can be applied.   Staff 
has also finished building the utility shed which houses the Irrigation meter, double 
check, and irrigation control clock.  In your council packets tonight I have included 
some pictures of the progress that has been made at the park.   

 Staff has begun marking out and prepping for the installation of the tot-lot playground 
at Roth Park.  We expect to have the playground built and ready for use by the end of 
the month.  

 Irrigation Blowouts are scheduled for the end of this month.  
 
Cemetery 

 Staff has been keeping up with the general maintenance at the cemetery.  Staff has a 
cremation this Saturday.  The Cemetery Commission will meet on Wednesday October 
26th.   
 

Parks and Recreation Commission 

 The Parks and Recreation Commission will meet on Tuesday October 25th.  We are 
currently seeking a new member for the Parks and Recreation commission.  

 









 

f:\council packets\fy16-17\october 2016\doc\11d public works report 10.6.16.docx 

Pa
ge

1 

 
PUBLIC WORK'S STAFF REPORT 

Public Works Department  

October 6, 2016 
 

 
1. Public Projects 

a. Sewer/Water Master Plans and Policy Update: The City Council adopted the 
Water System Master Plan, Sanitary Sewer Master Plan and Basic Utility 
Policies.  With legal staff input, we are in the process of reviewing and revising 
our city ordinances so that they better reflect our expectations.  City Staff has 
prepared a draft water system ordinance.  Legal staff has provided comments to 
the draft ordinance.  Standard Details for water infrastructure have been drafted 
and have been circulated for internal staff review.   

b. BNSF Railway - 2nd set of Tracks:  On 11.6.2014, ITD, BNSF, Kootenai County 
Sheriff's Department and the City of Rathdrum met to discuss BNSF Railway 
crossing at Mill Street and the future paralleling set of tracks through Rathdrum.  
BSNF has asked that Rathdrum identify our water main crossings, as BNSF will 
require us to extend the protective steel casing under the limits of the new 
proposed set of rail.  We have pot-holed 4 of the 5 locations and are compiling 
our collection information so that we can provide it to BNSF.  BNSF has informed 
us that any water line casing extensions need to be completed by the end of 
2015.  We anticipate that there is 1 water main crossing which will need to be 
modified. 

  BNSF mentioned their intentions of making improvements to SH53 (NB right-turn 
lane extension, SB left-turn lane extension, extension of NB travel lane).  The 
placement of the 2nd set of tracks, thru the Mill Street intersection, should close 
Mill Street for 1-day (per BNSF).  As recently as September 2015, BNSF advised 
us that they intend to start construction on the 2nd set of tracks in early 2016.  
However, others have indicated that BNSF's project will not take place until 2018. 

      c. New Water Production Well:  O'Keefe Drilling was awarded the bid for the new 
24" water production well.  We are still in the process of securing the donation of 
the 1-acre well site appraised.  Once the 1-acre parcel is obtained, we will 
process a water rights transfer application which will add this new point of 
diversion. 
Until the water-rights transfer application is processed, we don't believe that 
O'Keefe Drilling can obtain a water drilling permit.  Thus, the start date is in 
limbo.  It is anticipated that drilling could commence by October, but the water 
rights transfer application is a bit of an unknown. 

d. State Highway 41 Improvements:  Poe Asphalt has completed this project, 
between Rathdrum and SH54. 

Public Works – Staff Projects 
a. City-Wide Transportation Plan:  The consultant has developed the sub-network 

model of Rathdrum's roadway system.  DEA has completed a draft of the 2010 
sub-network model (existing conditions) and the development of the 2030 sub-
network model. DEA has also completed the preparation of the capital 
improvement program (to correspond with the deficiencies in the model) and 
provided us with detailed scope of work and cost estimates.  We hope to have 
the report finalized by the end of 2016. 

b. 2016 Street Rehabilitation Program:   
The Rathdrum City Council awarded a construction contract to Interstate 
Concrete & Asphalt on June 8, 2016.  Interstate is making good progress on the 



 

f:\council packets\fy16-17\october 2016\doc\11d public works report 10.6.16.docx 

Pa
ge

2 

street rehabilitation work.  We anticipate that all work will be complete by the 3rd 
week of October. 

• 2nd Street - between McCartney Street and Mill Street:  new curbs, 
sidewalks, on-street parking and new asphalt pavement construction. 

• McCartney Street asphalt pavement overlay - between BSNR Railway 
and 4th Street 

• Montana Street asphalt pavement overlay and sidewalk construction - 
between SH41 and Cassia Street 

• Boekel Road Pathway Extension - frontage of House of Prayer Church 

• Meyer Road Pathway Extension - from Tombstone Street to Park Rose 
Estates Subdivision.  We are modifying the work scope because the 
property owner has not yet granted the needed right-of-way. 

c. Flashing Pedestrian School Zone Signs:  The 5 sets of RRFB Solar-Powered 
Flashing School-Zone Crosswalk signs have been installed.  All signs are 
functional.  The crosswalk striping work was completed last week.  We hope to 
final-out this project by the end of October '16. 

d. Updates to Development Impact Fee Program:  we are preparing to begin the 
updating process for the City's Circulation (Traffic), Parks and Police Impact Fees 
in April.  We held our most recent committee meeting on M7.25.16.  We are 
reaching out to the committee to confirm a date/time for our final meeting. 

e. Barrett Road Improvements:  We awarded a contract to BCR Land Services. 
We have secured a right-of-way permit from the Post Falls Highway District.  We 
anticipate holding a pre-construction meeting next week, with Notice to Proceed 
to given at that pre-construction meeting. 

2. Site Plans/Subdivision Development 

a. Rathdrum Bible Church Addition:  Construction ongoing.  

b. STEM Charter School:  Construction for site expansion is substantially complete 
until spring.  A “Site Improvement Agreement for Provisional Certificate of 
Occupancy” was executed with the owners providing appropriate performance 
surety for the remaining site work to be completed by 6/30/15.  STEM added 
additional parking paving and landscaping to the site in summer 2015 and 
requested inspection 11/5/15.  A small list of items remain to be completed from 
both landscape plans to occur in spring 2016.  Staff is currently in contact with 
STEM’s Engineer to discuss remaining items that need to be completed.  Staff 
also recently met with STEM representatives on 2/26/16 regarding a proposed 
2016 Classroom expansion project which will add 4 classrooms on the southwest 
side of 2014 Admin/classroom building.   

c. Weaver Industries:  We conducted a pre-application meeting on 3/4/14 for this 
expansion project, which includes a new 8,800 SFT building. Plans have been 
submitted, a review letter and redlines to site plan have been picked up by Paul 
Matthews on 4/11/14. Staff is currently waiting for a response. 

d. Marks Marine:  A site plan was approved 9/2/14 for two buildings to be added on 
site for boat storage and is still under construction at this time. Staff completed a 
final site inspection on 2/23/16 for Marks Marine; a few items remain to be 
completed prior to issuing a Certificate of Occupancy. A final inspection is 
scheduled for 8.25.16. 

e. NIC:  Construction of the site is substantially complete with the project engineer’s 
initial punchlist being addressed by the contractor.  Staff has a Site Improvement 
Agreement for Provisional C of O prepared for the project sponsor.   

f. Prairie Sky - Phases 2, 3, 4 & 5:  Applicant’s Engineer submitted the preliminary 
plat for review on 9.25.15. Staff has presented this to both Planning & Zoning 
Commission (favorable recommendation) and City Council (approved).  The 



 

f:\council packets\fy16-17\october 2016\doc\11d public works report 10.6.16.docx 

Pa
ge

3 

Amended Development Agreement has been executed.  Construction drawings 
were approved on 5/12/16 and construction is underway.  

g. Eagle Automotive: The Applicant picked up the permit and construction is 
underway. 

h. NKWSD: The Applicant picked up the permit and construction is underway. 

i. North Ranch at Corbin Crossing 2nd Addition: Construction drawings have 
been submitted on 9.2.16 and review comments sent to the engineer. 

  




	01a Council Meeting Agenda - 10-12-16
	01b Rathdrum Executive Summary October 12 2016
	01c October Calendar
	05a Council Meeting Minutes - 09-14-16
	05b Special Council Minutes 09-19-16
	05c October Bills
	05ca September CD Journal
	05d Memo SH41 Well - Warranty Deed and Easements - 10.6.16
	05e Spiker & Mandere LLC_Water Meter Access Easement
	06a Idaho Chiefs of Police Association (UCOPA)
	06b Proclamation World Pancreatic Cancer Day
	06b World Pancreatic Cancer Day
	06cBreast Cancer Awareness Proclamation
	06d Veterans Proclamation
	11a Finance Report 10-12-16
	11b Park and Rec Report - 10-12-16
	11ba Majestic Pathway Pictures
	11d Public Works Report 10.6.16
	12a Appoint to Planning and Zoning



